
CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

AGENDA ● TUESDAY APRIL 11, 2017 

 Regular Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 7:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation by Pastor William Hohman, New Testament Church  

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Public Comment Period 

6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s); 

1. Minutes of March 14, 2017 meeting   

7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s): 

1. Revenue & Exprense Report for the period ending March 31, 2017   

8. Board of Public Works: 

1. Consider bid of $673,335.63 from American Asphalt on the Center Avenue 
Reconstruction Project.  Mayor Bialecki is brining this bid directly to the 
Common Council. City Engineer/Public Works Director Akey recommends 
approval.  

2. Consider bids for 2017 Recycle Crushing.  Mayor Bialecki is bringing these 
bids directly to the Common Council. City Engineer/Public Works Director 
Akey recommends approving the bid of $25,025 from Mitch King and Sons 
Gravel.   

9. Health and Safety Committee: 

1. Application from the Lincoln County Rodeo Association Inc.  for three 
temporary Class "B" (picnic) licenses to sell fermented malt beverages at the 
Merrill Festival Grounds during the Wisconsin Pro Rodeo, June 9 - June 11, 
2017.  The Health and Safety Committee recommends approval.  

2. Application  from the Merrill Firefighters Charities for three temporary Class 
"B" (picnic) licenses to sell fermented malt beverages at Ott's Park in 
conjunction with the Merrill Firefighters Charities Softball Tournament, August 
4 - August 6, 2017.  The Health and Safety Committee recommends 
approval.  

10. Personnel and Finance Committee: 

1. Request from T.B. Scott Library for budget amendment to fund lighting panel 
project.  The Personnel and Finance Committee recommends approval.  



Agenda Common Council Tuesday April 11, 2017 

11. Placing Committee Reports on File: 

1. Consider placing the following committee reports on file: Airport Commission, 
Board of Public Works, Health and Safety Committee, Library Board, Merrill 
Enrichment Center Committee, Parks and Recreation Commission, Personnel 
and Finance Committee, Water and Sewage Disposal Committee and Zoning 
Board of Appeals.   

12. Mayor's Appointments: 

 Ralph Sturm to the City Plan Commission, term to expire May 1, 2020   

 Melissa Schroeder to the City Plan Commission, term to expire May 1, 2020   

 Ben Debroux to the Parks and Recreation Commission, term to expire May 1, 
2022   

 Dave Sukow to Parks and Recreation Commission, term to expire May 1, 
2022   

 Don Heyel to the Police and Fire Commission, term to expire May 1, 2022   

 Audrey Huftel to the Library Board, term to expire June 30, 2018   

 D'Lacy Haight to the Library Board, term to expire June 30, 2020   

 James Wedemeyer to the Library Board, term to expire June 30, 2020   

 James Koebe to the Zoning Board of Appeals, term to expire May 1, 2020   

 Dean Haas to the Zoning Board of Appeals, term to expire May 1, 2020   

 Steve Willis to the Transit Commission, term to expire May 1, 2020   

 Pete Koblitz to the Community Development Committee, term to expire May 
1, 2020   

 Nancy Kwiesielewixz to the Community Development Committee, term to 
expire May 1, 2020   

 Betsy Wiesnewski to the Community Development Committee, term to expire 
May 1, 2020   

 Bea Lebal to the Historic Preservation Committee, term to expire May 1, 2020   

 Laureen O'Day to the Tourism Commission, term to expire May 1, 2018   

 Jim Arndt to the Tourism Commission, term to expire May 1, 2018   

 Ernie Stender to the Tourism Commission, term to expire May 1, 2018   

 Sister Peggy Jackelen to the Enrichment Center Committee, term to expire 
May 1, 2018   

 Rose Akey to Enrichment Center Committee, term to expire May 1, 2018   

 Rev. Kyle Carnes to the Enrichment Center Committee, term to expire May 1, 
2018   

 Diane Goetsch to Enrichment Center Committee, term to expire May 1, 2018   



Agenda Common Council Tuesday April 11, 2017 

 Gene Bebel to the Enrichment Center Committee, term to expire May 1, 2018   

 Art Lersch to the Enrichment Center Committee, term to expire May 1, 2018   

13. Ordinances: 

1. An Ordinance amending Chapter 8, Article XII, Section 8-330 to add Mobile 
Food Vendors.  The Health and Safety Committee recommends approval.  

2. Ordinance Amending Chapter 16, Section 1 to add licensing fees for Mobile 
Food Vendors.  The Health and Safety Committee recommends approval.  

3. Ordinance Amending Chapter 28, Article 1, Section 28-1(c) (25), related to 
Mobile Food Vendor operations in City parks.  The Health and Safety 
Committee recommends approval.  

14. Resolutions: (None) 

15. Mayor's Communications 

16. Adjournment 

 

William N. Heideman, CMC, WCMC 
City Clerk 

 
The Merrill City Hall is accessible to the physically disadvantaged. If special accommodations are needed, 

please contact the Merrill City Hall at (715) 536-5594. 



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2017-03-14  (2365 : Minutes of March 14, 2017 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2017-03-14  (2365 : Minutes of March 14, 2017 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2017-03-14  (2365 : Minutes of March 14, 2017 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2017-03-14  (2365 : Minutes of March 14, 2017 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2017-03-14  (2365 : Minutes of March 14, 2017 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2017-03-14  (2365 : Minutes of March 14, 2017 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
0

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2017-03-14  (2365 : Minutes of March 14, 2017 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
1

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2017-03-14  (2365 : Minutes of March 14, 2017 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
2

Attachment: Council Minutes - 2017-03-14  (2365 : Minutes of March 14, 2017 meeting)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
3

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
4

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
5

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
6

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
7

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
8

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
9

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
0

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
1

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
2

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
3

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
4

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
5

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
6

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
7

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
8

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
9

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
0

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
1

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
2

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
3

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
4

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
5

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
6

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
7

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
8

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
9

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
0

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
1

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
2

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
3

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
4

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
5

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
6

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
7

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
8

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
9

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
0

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017  (2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period



2017 Center Ave. Resurfacing Project Bid  

Recommendation: 
 Accept bid submitted from American Asphalt for $673,333.63 
 Original estimate of $550,000 was for milling and paving only. 
 Additional items are necessary to complete the project effectively and the milling  
 price was higher than estimated. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Rod Akey 
City Engineer/Public Works Director 
 
 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7 

C
en

te
r 

A
ve

. R
es

u
rf

ac
in

g
 P

ro
je

ct
 B

id
 R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
  (

23
99

 :
 B

id
 o

n
 C

en
te

r 
A

ve
n

u
e 

P
ro

je
ct

)



CITY OF MERRILL
M2017-04 Center Ave. Resurfacing
Bid Form Addenda #1

ITEM EST. UNIT ITEM
NO. ITEM QNTY. UNIT PRICE AMOUNT AMERICAN ASPHALT

1 Mill existing Pavement 32,480 SY $3.67 $119,201.60

2 Remove Concrete Pavement 1,117 SY $10.30 $11,505.10

3 Curb and Gutter Removal 1,042 LF $12.62 $13,150.04

4 30 Inch Curb and Gutter 1,628 LF $28.63 $46,609.64

5 Crushed Aggregate Base 1 1/4" Dense 240 CY $28.84 $6,921.60

6 Concrete Sidewalk 4" 760 SF $6.18 $4,696.80

7 Warm Mixed Asphalt Binder 4,000 Ton $61.37 $245,480.00

8 Warm Mixed Asphalt Surface 2,903 Ton $71.75 $208,290.25

9 Detectable Warning Fields 152 SF $36.05 $5,479.60

10 Excavation of Utility Adjusted Areas 500 SY $15.97 $7,985.00

11 Traffic Control 1 LS $30,000.00 $30,000.00
Total= $699,319.63

12 Deduct, Haul Millings to 
Contractors Site 32,480 SY $0.80 $25,984.00

Total= $673,335.63

8.1.b

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

en
te

r 
A

ve
 P

ro
je

ct
 B

id
 T

ab
 A

s 
R

ea
d

  (
23

99
 :

 B
id

 o
n

 C
en

te
r 

A
ve

n
u

e 
P

ro
je

ct
)



2017 Recycled Material Crushing 

Recommendation: 
 Accept bid submitted from Mitch King and Sons for $25,025.00. 
 Original budget amount of $20,000 was for an estimate of 5,000 cubic yards. 
 Updated estimate of existing pile is 6,500 cubic yards. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Rod Akey 
City Engineer/Public Works Director 
 
 

8.2.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
7 

R
ec

yc
le

d
 M

at
er

ia
l C

ru
sh

in
g

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

  (
24

00
 :

 B
id

s 
o

n
 2

01
7 

R
ec

yc
le

 C
ru

sh
in

g
)



City of Merrill
As-Read Bid Results
Project: Recycle Crushing 2017

Bidder Total Bid Amount
Mitch King and Sons Gravel $25,025.00

Merrill Gravel and Const. Co. $27,950.00

James Peterson Sons, Inc. $40,820.00

8.2.b

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ro
je

ct
  A

s 
R

ea
d

 B
id

 R
es

u
lt

s 
 (

24
00

 :
 B

id
s 

o
n

 2
01

7 
R

ec
yc

le
 C

ru
sh

in
g

)



8.
2.

c

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
5

Attachment: Bid Doc Recycled Material Crushing Mitch King and Sons  (2400 : Bids on 2017 Recycle



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
6

Attachment: Lincoln County Rodeo Assn Picnic License June 9 - 11  (2346 : Picnic License - Linc Co



9.
2.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
7

Attachment: Merrill Firefighters Charities Picnic License Aug 4 - Aug 6  (2345 : Merrill firefighters Picnic



10
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
8

Attachment: Agenda item request from library for budget amendment  (2322 : Library request for budget



10.1.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Q

u
o

te
s 

fo
r 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

 P
an

el
 f

o
r 

L
ib

ra
ry

  (
23

22
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 r
eq

u
es

t 
fo

r 
b

u
d

g
et

 a
m

en
d

m
en

t 
fo

r 
lig

h
ti

n
g

 p
an

el
)



10.1.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Q

u
o

te
s 

fo
r 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

 P
an

el
 f

o
r 

L
ib

ra
ry

  (
23

22
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 r
eq

u
es

t 
fo

r 
b

u
d

g
et

 a
m

en
d

m
en

t 
fo

r 
lig

h
ti

n
g

 p
an

el
)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
1

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
2

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
3

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
4

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
5

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
6

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
7

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
8

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
9

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
0

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
1

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
2

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
3

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
4

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
5

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
6

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
7

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
8

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
9

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
0

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
1

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
2

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
3

Attachment: Committee Reports  (2401 : File Committee Reports)



 

 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016- 
Introduced: April 11, 2017 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
RECOMMENDED FOR PASSAGE 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 8, Article XII, Section 8-330 of the Code of Ordinances for the 
City of Merrill is created to add the following: 

Sec. 8-330 Definitions.      

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 
  
Mobile Food Vehicle – a commercially manufactured, self-contained, mobile food unit including 
trucks, carts and trailers, in which food is prepared or processed and from which food is sold or 
dispensed to the ultimate consumer. 
 
Mobile Food Vehicle Vendor – the owner of a mobile food vehicle or pushcart; hereafter 
referred to as “vendor”. 
 
Pushcart – a non-self-propelled wheeled cart, specifically designed and used for keeping, 
storing, or warming food or beverage for sale by a mobile food vehicle vendor, which may be 
moved by one person without the assistance of a motor. 
 
Sec. 8-331 License Required 
 

a. It shall be unlawful for any person to do any of the following within a public right-of-way 
or on public property in the City of Merrill without first having obtained a State of 
Wisconsin Mobile Restaurant/Mobile Service Base Permit and a valid food vending 
license as prescribed in this article: 
(1) Operate a mobile food vehicle or pushcart; 
(2) Serve, sell, or distribute food from a mobile food vehicle or pushcart; 
(3) Cook, wrap, package, or portion food in a mobile food vehicle or pushcart for service, 

sale, or distribution. 

AN ORDINANCE: By Health and Safety Committee 
Re: Amending Chapter 8, Article XII, Section 8-330 

to add Mobile Food Vendors 

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 A
d

d
 M

o
b

ile
 F

o
o

d
 V

en
d

o
rs

  (
23

41
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 C

h
ap

te
r 

8,
 A

rt
ic

le
 X

II)



 
b. No person shall park, stop, or operate a mobile food vehicle or pushcart, on or within a 

public right-of-way or on public property in the City of Merrill, without the appropriate 
permits/licenses, nor shall any mobile food vehicle vendor permit any person to park, 
stop or operate a mobile food vehicle or pushcart in a location adjacent to or within a 
one-hundredtwo hundred, fifty foot radius of the nearest edge of any building or section 
of a building comprising a licensed food establishment, excluding any patio, awning, or 
temporary enclosure attached thereto, the kitchen of which is open for serving food to 
patrons.  This requirement may be waived if the most recent application for a mobile 
food vending license was submitted together with the written consent of the proprietor of 
the adjacent licensed food establishment. 

c. All vendors will abide by all parking and traffic laws, ordinances, statutes, rules, and 
regulations at all times, except that a mobile food vehicle that is of such a length that it 
occupies all or a portion of two marked parking spaces may park in such spaces so long 
as it abides by all other parking restrictions, including required payments in both parking 
meters, when applicable. 

d. Mobile food vehicles are not permitted on public sidewalks. 
e. Vendors are not allowed in City parking lots or on public property, except as part of an 

approved special event or upon approval by the Health and Safety Committee..  
Vendors are not allowed in City parks except where prior approval has been granted by 
the Parks and Recreation Commission. 

f. The City shall not regulate Vendors in private parking lots so long as the property owner 
has granted permission and all required health licenses are valid.  However, the host 
parking lot must remain in compliance with the zoning ordinance including off-street 
parking requirements for the host lot, and the mobile food vehicle or cart shall not block 
required drive aisles. 

g.  In residential areas (such as areas not adjacent to City parks), vendors are not 
permitted to park and stay in one location; vendors must keep moving and make only 
short stops to sell products, except as part of an approved special event or upon 
approval by the Health and Safety Committee. 

h. A person with a valid driver’s license of such a classification to allow the operation of the 
mobile food vehicle shall be with the vehicle at all times that any activity is taking place 
in the mobile food vehicle.  The vendor is liable for any violations or this subsection. 

i. No person will park, stop, or operate a mobile food vehicle, nor will any mobile food 
vehicle vendor permit any person to park, stop or operate a mobile food vehicle in a 
location within 500 feet of the boundary line of any property upon which a fair, farmer’s 
market, festival, carnival, circus, special event, or civic event licensed or sanctioned by 
the City is occurring, except when the vendor has obtained a permit or otherwise 
properly obtained permission to do so. 

j. Appropriate permits or other properly obtained permission must be obtained to park, 
stop, or operate a mobile food vehicle or push cart in a location within 500 feet of the 
boundary line of any property upon which a fair, farmer’s market, festival, carnival, 
circus, special event, or civic event licensed or sanctioned by the City is occurring. 

k. All mobile food vehicle vendors are prohibited from connecting to light poles, utility poles, 
or any public source of electricity, water or sewer, or to any planter or tree or other public 
amenity. 

l. All signage must be permanently affixed to the mobile food vehicle or pushcart.  No 
accessory signage will be placed outside or around the mobile food vehicle or pushcart. 

m. Mobile food vehicle or pushcart vending hours on public right-of-way are from 8:00 a.m. 
to 10:00 p.m. (Sunday through Thursday) and from 8:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. (Friday 
and Saturday).  Mobile food vehicle must be closed, the area cleaned and the mobile 

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 A
d

d
 M

o
b

ile
 F

o
o

d
 V

en
d

o
rs

  (
23

41
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 C

h
ap

te
r 

8,
 A

rt
ic

le
 X

II)



 
food vehicle removed by the time specified.  Mobile food vehicle vending hours are not 
restricted on private property locations. 

n. Nothing in this article shall be deemed to supersede or repeal any ordinance, National 
Fire Protection Association Codes and Standards, or administrative regulation relating to 
noise, park closing hours, or parking, except as specifically provided in the article.  
Vendors will take every precaution to ensure that their operations do not materially affect 
the peace and welfare of the general public nor cause any unreasonably loud, disturbing 
and unnecessary noise or any noise of such character, intensity or duration as to be 
detrimental to the life or health of any individual of which is in the disturbance of public 
peace and welfare. 

 
Sec. 8-332 License Application; Regulation 
 

a. Any person desiring to operate a mobile food vehicle or pushcart will make written 
application for a mobile food vending licenses to the City Clerk’s office.  The application 
for such license shall be on forms provided by the City Clerk’s office and will include all 
of the following: 
(1) The name, signature, and address of each applicant and of each member or officer 

of a corporate applicant. 
(2) A description, including make, model, VIN number, and licenses plate, of the mobile 

food vehicle. 
(3) A valid copy of all necessary licenses, permits or certificates required by the County 

of Lincoln, the State of Wisconsin, or any subsidiary enforcement agencies or 
departments thereof, including but not limited to valid proof of registration for the 
vehicle and driver’s licenses for all operators and documentation of the necessary 
approvals from the Lincoln County Health Department for operation as a mobile food 
vendor. 

(3)(4) A copy of general liability insurance with a $1,000,000 limit, with the City of 
Merrill listed as additional insured. 

(4)(5) Any additional information deemed necessary by the City Clerk to determine if 
issuance of a mobile food vending license to a particular applicant would be in the 
best interest of the public. 

b. Upon receipt of an application for a mobile food vending license, the clerk may conduct a 
background check and may refer to the Chief of Police or his or her designee who may 
make and complete an investigation of the statements made in such registration.  Any 
such investigation will be completed as soon as practicable.  The City Clerk may refuse 
to register the applicant if any of the following is determined: 

(1) The application contains any material omission or materially inaccurate 
statements. 

(2) The applicant was convicted of a crime, statutory violation or ordinance violation 
within the last five (5) years, the nature of which is directly related the applicant 
fitness to engage in direct selling; or 

(3) The applicant failed to comply with any requirement of §8-302(a)(4). 
c. Each mobile food vending license will expire on March 31st of each year. 
d. A mobile food vending license is not transferable from person to person 
e. A mobile food vending license is only valid for one vehicle only and is not transferable 
f. The mobile food vending license will be permanently and prominently affixed to the 

mobile food vehicle. 
g. Licenses, late fee and renewal fees shall be paid in accordance with the fee schedule as 

established by the Common Council, from time to time, and as indicated on the schedule 
of licenses and fees appearing in Chapter 16 of this Code. 

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 A
d

d
 M

o
b

ile
 F

o
o

d
 V

en
d

o
rs

  (
23

41
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 C

h
ap

te
r 

8,
 A

rt
ic

le
 X

II)



 
 
 
Sec. 8-333  Suspension and Revocation 
 
A mobile food vending licenses may be suspended or revoked by the City Clerk, or the Chief of 
Police, or the Fire Chief, if the license holder made any material omission or materially 
inaccurate statements in the license application, or if the license holder violates any provisions 
of this article, if there are noise complaints related to the mobile food vehicle or the operation 
thereof, of if the license holder is convicted of any crime or ordinance or statutory violation 
directly related to the licensed activity.  Notice of suspension or revocation will be personally 
served on the applicant and will include a statement of the act(s) upon which the denial is 
based.  Appeals are available as set out in §8-302(h). 
 
Sec. 8-334  Violations and Penalties. 
 

a. Any person violating any provisions of this article shall be subject to the forfeitures 
and penalties contained in §2-19 of this Code.  Each day of violation shall constitute 
a separate offense. 

b. The Police Department, Fire Department, and the Department of Public Works shall 
have concurrent authority to remove or cause the removal of any vending equipment 
or merchandise found on the street, sidewalk, terrace or other vending location in 
violation of any regulations established pursuant hereto.  In addition to any forfeiture, 
the violator shall be liable for any removal, towing and storage charges incurred by 
either department. 

 
Section 2  Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remainder of 
this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that this ordinance 
would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been included or any illegal 
application had not been made. 

Section 3  Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

 
 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published: 

 

Approved: 
 
 
William R. Bialecki,  
Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk

 
  

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 A
d

d
 M

o
b

ile
 F

o
o

d
 V

en
d

o
rs

  (
23

41
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 C

h
ap

te
r 

8,
 A

rt
ic

le
 X

II)



 

 

 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016- 
Introduced: April 11, 2017 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
RECOMMENDED FOR PASSAGE 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 16, Section 1of the Code of Ordinances for the City of Merrill is 
amended as follows: 

CHAPTER 8 BUSINESS LICENSING AND REGULATIONS 

8-19(b)(2)  Cigarette and tobacco products retailer license application fee $100.00 

8-47(c)(1)  Transient merchant registration application fee $50.00 

8-
112(b)(2)  

Application fee for application to operate public vehicles, taxicabs or automobiles 
for hire upon city streets  

$15.00 per 
vehicle 

8-112(c)  License fee for operation of public vehicles, taxicabs or automobiles for hire upon 
city streets for one cab licensed  $35.00 

 
For each additional cab licensed $10.00 

8-117  Taxicab driver's license annual fee $15.00 

8-138(a)  Permit to operate amusement arcade—application fee $25.00 

8-183  License for cleaning, dyeing or pressing of garments and items of all kinds—annual 
fee  $20.00 

8-210(a)  Sexually oriented business license application and investigation fee $100.00 

AN ORDINANCE: By Health & Safety Committee 
Re: Amending Chapter 16, Section 1 to add 

licensing fees for Mobile Food Vendors 

13.2.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 A
d

d
 M

o
b

ile
 F

o
o

d
 V

en
d

o
r 

L
ic

en
si

n
g

 F
ee

s 
 (

23
42

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
m

en
d

in
g

 C
h

ap
te

r 
16

, S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

)

https://www2.municode.com/library/wi/merrill/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTICOOR_CH8BULIRE
https://www2.municode.com/library/wi/merrill/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTICOOR_CH8BULIRE_ARTIIITRME_S8-47RE
https://www2.municode.com/library/wi/merrill/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTICOOR_CH8BULIRE_ARTVTA_S8-112RE


 

 

8-210(b)  Sexually oriented business license fee $150.00 

8-210(c)  Sexually oriented business employee application, investigation and license fee $50.00 

8-284  Investigation fee per individual $20.00 

8-
286(g)(4)  Failure to report daily penalty (per day) $10.00 

8-291  Annual license regulated per Wis. Stats. § 134.71(11)(a) $210.00 

8-291(b)  Pawn tracking system $2.00 

8-302(g) Mobile food vehicle or pushcart license fee $200.00 

 
  

Section 2. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 
and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that 
this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been 
included or any illegal application had not been made. 

Section 3. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

 
 

 

 
 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published: 

 

Approved: 
 
 
William R. Bialecki,  
Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk

 
  

13.2.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 A
d

d
 M

o
b

ile
 F

o
o

d
 V

en
d

o
r 

L
ic

en
si

n
g

 F
ee

s 
 (

23
42

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
m

en
d

in
g

 C
h

ap
te

r 
16

, S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

)



 

 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016- 
Introduced: April 11, 2017 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
RECOMMENDED FOR PASSAGE  
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 28, Article I, Section 28-1(c)(25) of the Code of Ordinances for 
the City of Merrill is amended as follows:    

Commercial enterprise.  
No person shall sell, or offer for sale, any article, thing, privilege or service in any park without prior 

written permission from the parks and recreation commission  
Mobile food vehicle(s) or pushcart(s) shall not operate in any park, unless the appropriate licensing 

and/or agreements are in place.  

Section 2. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 
and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that 
this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been 
included or any illegal application had not been made. 

Section 3. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

 
 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published: 

 

Approved: 
 
 
William R. Bialecki, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk  

AN ORDINANCE: By Park and Recreation 
Commission 

Re: Amending Chapter 28, Article I, Section 28-
1(c)(25) Commercial Enterprise Approval  

13.3.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 R
el

at
ed

 t
o

 M
o

b
ile

 F
o

o
d

 V
en

d
o

rs
 in

 P
ar

ks
  (

23
43

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 A
m

en
d

in
g

 C
h

ap
er

 2
8,

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
, S

ec
ti

o
n

 2
8-

1(
c)

(2
5)

)


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call to Order
	1. Roll Call

	2. Invocation by Pastor William Hohman, New Testament Church 
	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Roll Call
	5. Public Comment Period
	6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s);
	1. 2365 : Minutes of March 14, 2017 meeting
	a. Council Minutes - 2017-03-14


	7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s):
	1. 2398 : Revenue & Exprense Report for the period ending March 31, 2017
	a. Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017


	8. Board of Public Works:
	1. 2399 : Bid on Center Avenue Project
	a. 2017 Center Ave. Resurfacing Project Bid Recommendation
	b. Center Ave Project Bid Tab As Read

	2. 2400 : Bids on 2017 Recycle Crushing
	a. 2017 Recycled Material Crushing Recommendation
	b. Project  As Read Bid Results
	c. Bid Doc Recycled Material Crushing Mitch King and Sons


	9. Health and Safety Committee:
	1. 2346 : Picnic License - Linc Co Rodeo Assoc Inc
	a. Lincoln County Rodeo Assn Picnic License June 9 - 11

	2. 2345 : Merrill firefighters Picnic License
	a. Merrill Firefighters Charities Picnic License Aug 4 - Aug 6


	10. Personnel and Finance Committee:
	1. 2322 : Library request for budget amendment for lighting panel
	a. Agenda item request from library for budget amendment
	b. Quotes for Lighting Panel for Library


	11. Placing Committee Reports on File:
	1. 2401 : File Committee Reports
	a. Committee Reports


	12. Mayor's Appointments:
	2363 : Appoint Ralph Sturm to City Plan Commission
	2364 : Appoint Melissa Schroeder to City Plan Commission
	2366 : Appoint Ben Debroux to Parks and Rec.
	2367 : Appoint Dave Sukow to Parks and Rec.
	2368 : Appoint Don Heyel to Police and Fire
	2369 : Appoint Audrey Huftel to Library Board
	2370 : Appoint D'Lacy Haight to Library Board
	2371 : Appoint James Wedemeyer to Library Board
	2372 : Appoint James Koebe to Zoning Board of Appeals
	2373 : Appoint Dean Haas to Zoning Board of Appeals
	2374 : Appoint Steve Willis to Transit Commission
	2375 : Appoint Pete Koblitz to Community Development Committee
	2376 : Appoint Nancy Kwiesielewixz to Community Development Committee
	2377 : Appoint Betsy Wiesnewski to Community Development Committee
	2378 : Appoint Bea Lebal to Historic Preservation Committee
	2379 : Appoint Laureen O'Day to Tourism Commission
	2380 : Appoint Jim Arndt to Tourism Commission
	2381 : Appoint Ernie Stender to Tourism Commissison
	2382 : Appoint Sister Peggy Jackelen to Enrichment Center Committee
	2383 : Appoint Rose Akey to Enrichment Center Committee
	2384 : Appoint Rev. Kyle Carnes to Enrichment Center Committee
	2385 : Appoint Diane Goetsch to Enrichment Center Committee
	2386 : Appoint Gene Bebel to Enrichment Center Committee
	2387 : Appoint Art Lersch to Enrichment Center Committee

	13. Ordinances:
	1. 2341 : Ordinance Amending Chapter 8, Article XII
	a. Ordinance to Add Mobile Food Vendors

	2. 2342 : Ordinance Amending Chapter 16, Section 1
	a. Ordinance to Add Mobile Food Vendor Licensing Fees

	3. 2343 : Ordinance Amending Chaper 28, Article 1, Section 28-1(c)(25)
	a. Ordinance Related to Mobile Food Vendors in Parks


	14. Resolutions: (None)
	15. Mayor's Communications
	16. Adjournment

	Appendix
	6.1.a · Council Minutes - 2017-03-14
	7.1.a · Revenue & Expense Report - Mar 2017
	8.1.a · 2017 Center Ave. Resurfacing Project Bid Recommendation
	8.1.b · Center Ave Project Bid Tab As Read
	8.2.a · 2017 Recycled Material Crushing Recommendation
	8.2.b · Project  As Read Bid Results
	8.2.c · Bid Doc Recycled Material Crushing Mitch King and Sons
	9.1.a · Lincoln County Rodeo Assn Picnic License June 9 - 11
	9.2.a · Merrill Firefighters Charities Picnic License Aug 4 - Aug 6
	10.1.a · Agenda item request from library for budget amendment
	10.1.b · Quotes for Lighting Panel for Library
	11.1.a · Committee Reports
	13.1.a · Ordinance to Add Mobile Food Vendors
	13.2.a · Ordinance to Add Mobile Food Vendor Licensing Fees
	13.3.a · Ordinance Related to Mobile Food Vendors in Parks


